City copy

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES UNION OF SOUTH AMBOY

AND

THE CITY OF SOUTH AMBOY

JANUARY 1, 2014 - December 31, 2018

TABLE OF CONTENTS

. F	PAGE
Preamble	1
Article I. Recognition	2
Article II. Medical Benefits	4
Article III. Life Insurance	7
Article IV. Clothing and Shoe Allowance	8
Article V. Holidays	. 9
Article VI. Salary	. 10
Article VII. Meal Ticket	. 13
Article VIII. Personal Days	. 14
Article IX. Vacation	. 15
Article X. Overtime	. 16
Article XI. Longevity	. 18
Article XII. Disability	. 19
Article XIII Compensation for Temporary Assignment	. 20
Article XIV Terminal Leave	. 21
Article XIV Death Benefit/Active Employee	. 23
Article XV Union President	. 24
Article XVI Medical Examinations & Commercial Driver's License	e 25
Article XVII Grievance Procedure and Arbitration	27
Article XVIII. Management of City Affairs	. 35
Article XIX. Strikes and other job actions	. 36
Article XX Job Posting	37

1143005-5 i

Article	XXI Minor Discipline	38
Article	XXII Notice of Layoff	39
Article	XXIII Representation Fee	40
Article	XXIV Funeral Leave	41
Article	XXIV General Provisions	42

1143005-5 ii

PREAMBLE

THIS AGREEMENT is effective retroactive to January 1, 2014, by and between THE CITY OF SOUTH AMBOY, in the County of Middlesex, a Municipal Corporation of the State of New Jersey, (hereinafter referred to as the "City") and the MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEE'S UNION OF SOUTH AMBOY, (hereinafter referred to as "MEUSA"), and represents the complete and final understanding on all bargainable issues between the City and MEUSA and is designed to maintain and promote a harmonious relationship between the City and the employees who are represented by MEUSA in order that continued efficiency and excellence in service be rendered by the employees of the City of South Amboy. The term of this Agreement is from January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2018.

ARTICLE I. RECOGNITION

- 1. The City hereby recognizes MEUSA as the sole and exclusive representative of City employees in the Bargaining Unit for the purpose of collective bargaining with respect to rate of pay, wages, hours of work, settlement of grievances and other mandatorily negotiable conditions of employment.
- 2. The Bargaining Unit shall consist of all regular blue and white collar employees of the City located in various departments, now employed and hereafter employed, but shall exclude, except as mutually agreed by the parties, professional, craft and supervisory (foreman and above) employees. addition, it is understood that confidential employees, executives, police, seasonal managerial employees, employees, school crossing guards and those employees working twenty (20) or fewer hours per week (on the average in a 180-day period) or less than 12 months per year except for employees whose usual work schedule is 10 months per year, are excluded from the bargaining unit.
- 3. Except as currently the practice, confidential employees shall be defined to include the following positions in the Department of Administration and the Department of Finance in the City of South Amboy. For the purpose of this subsection the Division of Public Works shall not be considered part of the Department of Administration:

Administrative Secretary Confidential Secretary City Clerk Assistant Tax Collector Tax Collector

- 4. The City and MEUSA agree that there shall be no discrimination against any employee because of race, creed, color, religion, sex or national origin.
- 5. The City and MEUSA agree that all employees covered under this Agreement have the right, without fear of penalty or reprisal, to form, join, resign from or assist MEUSA or to refrain from any such activity. There shall be no discrimination by the City and MEUSA against any employee because of the employee's membership or non-membership, activity or non-activity in MEUSA.

ARTICLE II MEDICAL BENEFITS

- 1. The city hereby agrees to assume full cost of providing the following medical benefits to the employees covered by Agreement and their families:
 - (A) Hospitalization equivalent to Blue Cross 365, Blue Shield UCR and Rider J and/or optional HMO's; and
 - (B) Major Medical coverage equivalent to the previously in force expanded Connecticut General plan; the deductible on major medical coverage shall be as follows: \$250.00 per insured with a limit of \$500.00 per insured family.
 - (C) Dental insurance coverage equivalent to the previously in force dental plan:

Fee Schedule: UCR

Deductible: \$25.00 with 75.00

per maximum

aggregate

per family per year

Basic & Prosthodontic Limit: \$1,500.00

Orthodontic Maximum: \$1,500.00

Basic Coinsurance: 80/20

Prosthodontic & Orthodontic

Coinsurance: 50/50

(D) Prescription Plan coverage with the following deductible:

\$5.00 for generic prescriptions \$10.00 for name brand prescriptions

(E) The city may provide health and prescription drug insurance under the New Jersey State Health Benefits Program in satisfaction of paragraphs 1. 2. and 4. above.

- 2.A. Upon retirement of an employee covered by this Agreement, the City shall continue to provide medical coverage as set forth in Appendix B. See Appendix B.
- 2.B. Upon the death of an active employee covered by this Agreement and providing that the said employee has attained at least fifteen (15) years of continuous service with the City, the City shall continue to pay the cost of all medical coverages set forth above, except for dental and prescription drug benefits, for the employee's spouse and dependent children; provided they do not have other available, and substantially similar medical benefits and qualify for coverage under the then existing health insurance plan.

- 3. It is hereby agreed by MEUSA and the City that for all employees covered by this Agreement the City may exercise its right to change insurance carriers so long as the coverages enumerated in this Agreement are maintained at their equivalent levels.
- 4. The City shall reimburse all bargaining unit employees for the purchase of prescription eyeglasses to the maximum of \$100.00 per year, per employee. No eyeglass reimbursement shall be due unless the request for same is accompanied by both a copy of the physician's eyeglass prescription, made out to the covered employee, and a receipt for the prescription eyeglasses.
- 5. The President of MEUSA shall be provided a full copy of each master insurance policy held by the City which concerns coverage of bargaining unit employees. Any amendments to such policies shall be provided the Union President within thirty (30) days of any amendment. Any questions concerning coverage under these policies shall be directed to the MEUSA or the insurance carrier.

ARTICLE III LIFE INSURANCE

- 1. The City hereby agrees to provide the following group term life insurance:
 - A. Employees and retired employees below the age of 65 years \$50,000.00 with a double indemnity benefit for accidental death.
 - B. Employees and retired employees 65 years of age to 69 years of age \$25,000.00 with a double indemnity benefit for accidental death.
 - C. Employees and retired employees 70 years of age and older -\$2,500.00.

ARTICLE IV. CLOTHING AND SHOE ALLOWANCE

1. The City shall provide a payment of One Hundred Dollars(\$100.00) to a vendor of its choosing for any employee required by the City to wear steel tip safety shoes as a condition of employment.

Reimbursement shall be limited to no more than two (2) pair of safety shoes annually. The need to acquire the second pair of said shoes shall be at the sole discretion of the Superintendent of Public Work Employment. Employees abusing this provision shall be responsible for the entire cost of said replacement.

2. To the following full-time bargaining unit employees, the City shall pay for reimbursement for the purchase of work clothing, per year, the sum of Two Hundred Dollars (\$200.00):

Supervisors/Sewers Sewage Plant Operator Sewer Repairer Senior Sewer Repairer Senior Recreation Maintenance Workers Maintenance Repairers Equipment Operators Laborers Truck Drivers Heavy Equipment Operators Heavy Equipment Mechanics Millwright Senior Maintenance Repairer Supervising Laborer Motor Vehicle Operator for Elderly & Handicapped Sanitary Worker Supervisor of Roads Code Enforcement/Recycling Coordinator Code Enforcement/Animal Control Public Safety Telecommunicator

ARTICLE V. HOLIDAYS

- 1. The City hereby grants to all employees covered by this Agreement fourteen (14) paid holidays, to be designated by ordinance by the City Council. It is hereby agreed that MEUSA may request of the City permission of the City to designate one (1) of these holidays as a floating holiday, to be taken at a later date in the same calendar year. MEUSA shall submit the request to the City no later than forty-five (45) days before the date of the holiday to be worked and the day to be taken off in lieu of the holiday worked. The City shall either accept or reject the request of MEUSA no later than fifteen (15) days before said dates.
- 2. It is specifically agreed that no employee covered by this Agreement shall be permitted to file against the City any action claiming monetary loss from said holiday exchange.

ARTICLE VI. SALARY

1. The City hereby agrees to grant to all full-time employees covered by this Agreement an increase in their base salary as follows:

Effective Date: January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014

Annual Salary: 2% of annual salary Hourly Employee: 2% of hourly salary

Effective Date: January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015

Annual Salary: 2% of annual salary Hourly Employee: 2% of hourly salary

Effective Date: January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016

Annual Salary: 2% of annual salary Hourly Employee: 2% of hourly salary

Effective Date: January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017

Annual Salary: 2% of annual salary Hourly Employee: 2% of hourly salary

Effective Date: January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018

Annual Salary: 2% of annual salary Hourly Employee: 2% of hourly salary

- 2. Part-time employees covered by this Agreement shall be granted increases in base salaries based on a pro-rated basis, utilizing the percentage of their time worked to a full-time position.
 - 3. Titles within the bargaining unit and the appropriate starting and maximum salary are set forth in Schedule "A".
- 4. Meusa reserves the right to reopen negotiations for salary purposes only for years 2017 and/or 2018 in its sole discretion, by giving the City 45 days notice of its intent to do so.

- 5. The City shall have the right to modify paycheck procedures so as to issue checks on the 15th and 30th of each month, except February when the second paychecks shall be issued on the last day of the month.
- 6. Active employees represented by the Association, shall be entitled to receive the negotiated salary increases/adjustments. Employees in good standing who left the City employ because of retirement, layoff or positive resignations, shall be entitled to a salary adjusted which shall be pro-rated consistent with the term of the prior Agreement and the term of the succeeding Agreement.

Example: An employee represented by the Association who left the City employ after January 1, 2014, would receive a prorated adjustment up to the date of his/her termination. If the termination resulted from "charges" brought against the employee and if the charges were sustained by the N.J. Department of Personnel, the employee would not be entitled to retroactive salary adjustments.

7. The City will continue the systematic approach to adjust the base salaries of those employees represented by MEUSA who were hired prior to May 1, 2010 and who are currently compensated at a salary base which is inconsistent with their years of service with the City. The adjustments will be applied yearly, in the month of January, and will occur during the terms of the current contract. These adjustments will be made at the

rate of one dollar (\$1.00) per wage hour, per year, unless an addition of one dollar will place the affected employee salary over the maximum as indicated in Schedule A for 2008. If such is the case, the increase will be the amount that will place the salary for that employee at the maximum provided in Schedule A for said position. Where several employees hold the same title, any employee with less time of service with the City shall not be compensated at a higher rate than the senior employee.

ARTICLE VII. MEAL TICKET

- 1. The City shall pay to each employee, over and above compensation for salary and wages, meal tickets at FIFTEEN DOLLARS (\$15.00) each, according to the following:
 - A. For continuous work attached to a normal scheduled work day, not including normal meal breaks, one (1) meal ticket at the start of the third (3rd) overtime hour after the normal eight(8) hour day and one (1) every fourth(4th) overtime hour thereafter. To qualify, an employee must be on duty and assigned to work during the overtime hour in which the employee obtains the meal ticket.
 - B. For call-in work not contiguous to a normal work day schedule, one (1) meal ticket at the start of the ninth (9th) overtime hour and one (1) meal ticket at the start of every fourth (4th) overtime hour thereafter.

ARTICLE VIII. PERSONAL DAYS

Each employee covered by this Agreement shall be granted three (3) personal days. Prior notice and approval shall be required at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance and according to the regulations promulgated by the City. Personal days shall not be consecutively utilized in connection with any vacation or sick leave granted herein. Unused personal days shall not accumulate and will be forfeited as of the last day of every calendar year. One (1) personal day shall be charged for each day or part of the day utilized. Except in extreme emergencies, no personal days shall be permitted on holidays, weekends or in periods of time when the City determines that it has insufficient manpower to permit the granting of said request for personal days. In the event that the notice provisions cannot be met, the City agrees to consider shorter notice, provided that the City is notified by the employee when the employee learns of the need to utilize a personal day.

ARTICLE IX. VACATION

1. Employees covered by this Agreement shall be entitled to the following annual vacation schedule:

Less than one (1) year

One (1) working day per month

One(1) to five (5) years

Six(6) to Ten (10) years

Fifteen (15) working days per year

Eleven (11) to Fifteen (15) Twenty(20) working days per year

years

Sixteen (16) to Twenty (20) Twenty-five (25) working days

year

Twenty-one (21) years and

Over

One (1) working day per month

Twelve (12) working days per year

year

per year

Thirty (30) working days per year

Over

- 2. Part-time employees covered by this Agreement shall be entitled to pro-rated vacation leave, based upon their part-time working day, in accordance with the above schedule.
- 3. Employees are permitted to accumulate no more than ten (10) vacation days at any one time, and then only with the written permission of their Department Head.
- 4. Employees are permitted to take vacation days in (1/2) one half day increments and then only with the written permission of their Department Head. Said approval may not be unreasonably withheld.

15

ARTICLE X. OVERTIME

- 1. All employees who are covered by this Agreement shall receive overtime pay for all time worked over the standard schedule. Payment for hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week shall be at one and one-half (1-1/2) times the individual hourly rate. Payment for hours worked in excess of sixteen (16) hours per day, or for work performed on the seventh (7th) consecutive working day, shall be at two times the hourly rate. If the employee is paid other than on an hourly basis, the hourly salary shall be determined by dividing compensation authorized as if said employee was employed for 2,080 hours per year. For purposes of overtime payment, hours worked shall have been actual hours worked.
- 2. Overtime rates shall be paid for all hours worked on the sixth or seventh day of the employee's work week.

- 3. When an employee covered by this Agreement is called in to work during a period not contiguous with the normal work schedule, the City of South Amboy shall pay said employee for a minimum of four (4) hours of work at the applicable overtime rate, provided that said employee remains on duty for the four (4) hour period. Should the employee leave duty voluntarily, the employee shall be compensated only for the hours worked. It shall be the responsibility of the City Supervisory Staff to have assignments available for the full period worked.
- 4. Beginning on July 1, 2003, the City will pay overtime at the rate of 2 1/2 times the individuals hourly rate to an employee required to work for more than twenty-four (24) continuous hours.

ARTICLE XI. LONGEVITY

1. The City shall pay to all bargaining unit employees longevity increments as set forth below, in addition to their regular salaries:

AMOUNT	LENGTH OF SERVICE
2% of Base Annual Salary	After 05 years' continuous service
4% of Base Annual Salary	After 10 years' continuous service
6% of Base Annual Salary	After 15 years' continuous service
8% of Base Annual Salary	After 20 years' continuous service
10% of Base Annual Salary	After 25 years' continuous service

The eligibility periods for all longevity benefits commence on January 1, 1988 for all bargaining unit employees, regardless of years of service prior to the date hereof. Thus, no longevity benefit could accrue for any employee until January 2, 1993, or five (5) years after January 1, 1998. For the purposes of this Article, only, "continuous years of service" (to calculate the rate of longevity benefits) commence on January 1, 1998, despite actual years of service. Thus, an employee with ten (10) years of service as of January 1, 1988 would obtain the two percent (2%) benefit as of January 2, 1993.

Longevity shall be fixed and calculated on January 1st of each year.

ARTICLE XII. DISABILITY

- 1. If a bargaining unit employee is totally disabled and unable to perform his or her normal duties of employment, or other employment offered by the City, as a result of an accident or condition not arising out of and in the course of his or her employment with the City, the City shall pay to the disabled employee his or her regular base pay for a maximum period of thirty-two (32) working days; and during total disability (provided that the disabled employee has exhausted all sick leave), personal days and vacation benefits, under this Agreement. The City and MEUSA agree that the disability payment provided for by this Article is available to each employee covered by this Article only once during the course of the employee's employment with the City.
- 2. The City agrees to provide disability insurance pursuant to New Jersey State Disability commencing January 1, 2015.

ARTICLE XIII. COMPENSATION FOR TEMPORARY ASSIGNMENT

- 1. The City hereby agrees to recognize that if any employee is temporarily assigned to a higher job classification, the employee shall be entitled to be compensated at the upgraded salary for the amount of time he/she works in the higher job classification. No upgrade compensation shall be required if the employee performs said upgraded duties on an incidental basis, such as driving a vehicle from one location to another to arrive at a job site.
- 2. The City hereby agrees to recognize that if any employee is temporarily assigned to a lower paying job classification, the employee shall be entitled to be compensated at his or her regular rate as opposed to the rate of the lower paying job.

ARTICLE XIV. TERMINAL LEAVE

1. Upon retirement, the City agrees to compensate employees covered by this Agreement for whom sick leave records have been maintained over their period of employment, one (1) day's current salary for each two (2) days of accumulated unused sick leave, subject to a maximum lump sum payment not to exceed \$15,000.00.

2. Sick Leave.

- A. Sick Leave shall mean absence from duty of any employee because of personal disability due to illness or because he or she has been excluded from their post or duty by a medical doctor because of a contagious disease or of being quarantined for such a disease in their immediate household.
- B. Employees shall be allowed 15 sick days per calendar year to be prorated for new employees at a rate of 1-1/4 days per month during their first calendar year of employment.

- C. If an employee does not use the allotted days of sick leave in any one(1) calendar year, he or she may be allowed to accumulate all of the unused portion without limit.
- D. All employees are required to obtain a physician's certificate of illness on absences of three or more days and on every seventh (7th) day and must have a doctor's certificate of ability to work before returning to work at the employee's expense.
- E. Sick leave shall not be used for any other purpose.
- F. If an employee cannot come to work he or she must notify the City Business Administrator's office as soon as possible after notifying their supervisor.

ARTICLE XIV - A DEATH BENEFIT/ACTIVE EMPLOYEE

If a City employee, represented by the bargaining unit, dies while actively employed by the City, said employee's spouse/estate shall receive a lump sum payment from the City for accumulated leave within 30 days of the death of the employee.

Said payment shall not exceed \$15,000.00 and shall be based on the formula established in Article XIV of the Collective Bargaining Agreement (Terminal Leave).

ARTICLE XV. UNION PRESIDENT

1. The Union President shall be entitled to a total of forty (40 hours in the aggregate to be released from work without loss of pay to attend to union affairs. Records of such time shall be maintained. This time shall be in addition to that time scheduled by mutual agreement of the parties for attendance at meetings, conferences and negotiations and in addition to that time provided pursuant to the grievance procedure for attendance as a representative at grievance hearings.

ARTICLE XVI. MEDICAL EXAMINATIONS AND COMMERCIAL DRIVER'S LICENSE

A. Medical Examinations:

- 1. The City may provide a medical examination to each full time employee covered by this Agreement. Each existing employee or new employee hired or existing employee who is rehired after termination of more than fourteen (14) days shall be required, as a condition of employment, to pass a medical examination. Such examination shall be conducted by a physician licensed to practice in the State of New Jersey or in a hospital accredited by and/or licensed to operate in the State of New Jersey as determined by the City of South Amboy. The results of said examination shall be made available to the employee and the City.
- 2. The City, as a minimum may provide the medical examination as follows:
 - A. New hires before date of hire;
 - B. Up to thirty-nine years old on January 1st of the year in question every two (2) years;
 - C. Over forty (40) years old on January 1st of the year in question every year.

3. When making appointments for a medical examination the employee, in the first instance, shall present his City sponsored Health Insurance Identification Card, in an attempt to have the insurance provider assume the cost of said physical examination.

In the event that the Health Insurance Company pays a portion of the cost, the City will pay the difference between that amount remitted by the Health Insurance Company and the cost of the physical examination. If the "claim" is denied by the Health Insurance Company, the City will assume the cost of the physical examination.

4. The employee shall be permitted time off during the work day for an authorized medical examination, subject to the approval of the employee's supervisor.

B. Commercial Driver's License:

If an employee requires a New Jersey Commercial Driver's License ("CDL"), as a condition of his/her job with the City, then, the City will permit time off during the work day for the employee to qualify and obtain the CDL, which time off shall not exceed, in total, 7.5 hours in any one year, and shall be subject to the approval of the employee's supervisor.

ARTICLE XVII. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE AND ARBITRATION

To provide for the expeditious and mutually satisfactory settlement of grievances arising with respect to complaints occurring under this Agreement, the following procedures shall be used.

Grievance Procedure and Arbitration

- A. A grievance is defined as any dispute, controversy or issue involving the interpretation, application or violation (alleged or otherwise) of any provision of this Agreement or regarding employment or the application of any rules, regulations, ordinances and/or statute which actually affects working conditions.
- B. A grievant is defined as any individual or entity which has been, is being, or may be affected by any issue, or controversy or dispute, or application, as indicated in the definition of a grievance. The Union may initiate or file a grievance on behalf of an injured or unavailable employee.
- C. Grievances, disputes or controversies which may arise shall be resolved in the following manner:
- 1. A written grievance shall meet the following specifications:
 - (a) It shall be specific.
- (b) It shall contain a synopsis of the facts giving rise to the dispute, controversy or issue.
- (c) It shall specify the section of the Agreement, or rule, or regulation, or statute, or ordinance, which has been allegedly violated, misapplied, or as to which the dispute arises.
 - (d) It shall state the relief requested.

- (e) It shall contain the date of the alleged dispute, controversy or issue.
 - (f) it shall be signed by the grievant.
- 2. Times, as indicated, exclude Saturday, Sunday and legal holidays, except where calendar days are indicated.
 - 3. The "Step Procedure" will be as follows:

Step One: Within twenty (20) calendar days after its occurrence, or within twenty (20) calendar days after he/she knew, or should have known, of its existence, the aggrieved employee shall discuss his/her complaint with his/her immediate supervisor. The complaint shall be discussed verbally and if resolved, no further action shall be taken. If not resolved on an informal discussion basis within three (3) working days, the grievance shall be reduced to writing within seven (7) calendar days, signed by the aggrieved, and submitted to the immediate supervisor at Step One. In no event shall a grievance be initiated more than twenty (20) calendar days after occurrence, or more than twenty (20) calendar days after the grievant first knew, or should have known of its existence. The supervisor shall investigate the grievance and provide a written answer to the grievant within seven (7) calendar days of the date of the submission. The time limit in preparing a written grievance, or written response, may be waived by mutual agreement. In the event the supervisor is the department head, the grievance shall commence at Step Two.

Step Two: In the event the grievance is not resolved at Step One, or if no written response is received by the grievant, the grievance shall then be submitted, in writing, by the grievant, the department head (with a copy to the City Administrator). The department head shall submit his answer to the grievant within seven (7) calendar days. This time limit may be waived by mutual agreement.

Step Three: In the event the grievance shall not have been resolved at Step Two, or if no written response from the department head is received by the grievant, then the grievance shall be submitted to the City Business Administrator by the grievant. The City Administrator shall investigate and report his findings and recommendations, in writing, within seven (7) calendar days, to the grievant, the department head, and attorney or representative of the grievant, (if any).

- 1. Any employer grievance will be filed' with the Union President at Step Three. The Union President shall respond, in writing, within seven (7) calendar days, to the City Administrator. The times indicated may be extended by mutual agreement.
- 2. Following the submission of the City Administrator's written answer, or the Union President's (as also indicated in Step Three for employer grievances) matter which are unresolved shall be discussed at a meeting between the parties, during which all pertinent facts and information will be reviewed in an effort to resolve the matter through conciliation.

Step Four: If a grievance has not been resolved at Step Three, then the Union shall have the right to present to the City Council the reasons for hearing the grievance. The City Council shall retain the right to waive this step of the grievance procedure, and the Union can proceed to Arbitration. If the City Council chooses to hear the grievance, then the City Council shall schedule and hold a plenary hearing within twentyone (21) days of the receipt of the grievance from the City Council. The City Council shall hear the matter and render its decision within fourteen (14) days of the completion of the hearing. The City Council shall notify all parties of the date, time and place of the hearing, within ten (10) days prior to the scheduled hearing date. All parties may be represented by an attorney during the plenary hearing. The times indicated may be waived or extended by mutual agreement. All decisions of the City Council shall be a majority vote.

Step Five: In the event the grievance shall not have been resolved at Step Four, and in the event of an employer grievance at Step Three, then the grievant may seek relief at arbitration herein specified, except that in all matters State constitutional issues or civil questions, the grievant shall have the right to seek a resolution of his grievance either at binding arbitration or in courts. In all respects the initiation of binding the arbitration or court process shall begin within forty-five (45) days after receipt of a written resolution from the City Council, which Resolution shall embody the decision of the Council.

4. Arbitration:

- (a) Arbitration requests shall be directed to the Public Employment Relations Commission, subject to the rules then existing of such agency. The aggrieved party shall send the other party a copy of his request. The request shall specify the particulars of the grievance and the Agreement provision(s) allegedly violated.
- (b) The selection of the independent arbitrator shall be made pursuant to the rules then existing of the Public Employment Relations Commission.
- (c) The arbitrator shall hold the hearing at a time and place convenient to the parties. The arbitrator shall issue his decision within twenty-one (21) days after the close of the hearing. The decision of the arbitrator shall be served upon the employee aggrieved, the employee's representative, the City Administrator and the Union, in writing.

In the event a disagreement exists regarding whether an issue is arbitrable, the arbitrator shall make a preliminary determination as to whether the issue is arbitrable under the express terms of this Agreement. Once a preliminary determination is made that such a dispute is arbitrable, the arbitrator shall then proceed to determine the merits of the dispute.

(d) Unless otherwise mutually agreed, the submission to the arbitrator shall be based on the original written grievance and issues submitted in the grievance procedure at Step One. This paragraph shall not be construed as to limit the submission of proofs by the parties.

- (e) An arbitrator shall not have the power authority to add to, subtract from, or modify the provisions of this Agreement, or the laws of the State of New Jersey, and shall confine his decision solely to the interpretation and application of this Agreement. He shall confine himself to the precise issues submitted for arbitration and shall have no authority to determine any other issues not so submitted to him. The arbitrator shall not submit observations or declarations of his opinions which are not relevant in reaching a determination. The arbitrator may prescribe an appropriate back pay remedy when he finds a violation of this Agreement, provided such remedy is permitted by law and is consistent with the terms of this Agreement. The arbitrator shall have no authority to prescribe a monetary award as a penalty for a violation of this Agreement, except as provided within the Agreement. The arbitrator shall not have the authority to add to or subtract from or modify any of the terms of this Agreement or to limit or impair any right that is reserved to the City or the Union or employee, or to establish or change any wage or rate of pay that has been agreed to in this Agreement, except where the arbitrator finds that a clause in this Agreement is illegal or unconstitutional.
- (f) The decision of the arbitrator is final and binding upon both parties in those instances wherein the grievance arises from any issue involving the interpretation, application or violations (alleged or otherwise) of any provision of this Agreement and in all such instances the grievance shall be considered permanently resolved. In all other

instances the decision of the arbitrator shall be advisory only.

- (g) The expense of the arbitrator shall be shared equally by both parties. Each party shall make arrangements for and pay the witnesses which are called by it.
- (h) If the Public Employment Relations Commission is abolished, or its mission substantially changed to the extent of it handling arbitrable matters, the parties shall meet to agree upon another method of choosing an arbitrator.

5. General Provisions and Exceptions to the Grievance Procedure:

- (a) No grievance settlement reached under the terms of the Agreement shall add to, subtract from, or modify the terms of the Agreement.
- (b) Grievance resolutions or decisions at Step One through Step Four shall not constitute a precedent in any arbitration or other proceeding unless a specific Agreement to that effect is made by the City and the Union.
- (c) Where a grievance involves, exclusively, an alleged error in calculation of salary payment, the grievance may be timely filed within thirty (30) days of the time the individual should reasonably have known of its occurrence.

- (d) The aggrieved employee and his designated employee representative shall be allowed time off without loss of pay as may be required for appearance at a hearing of the employee's grievance scheduled during working hours.
- (e) Where the employee or the Union request employee witnesses, permission for a reasonable number of witnesses required during a grievance proceeding will be granted. A witness at such proceedings will be permitted to appear without loss of pay for the appearance as required, if during his normal scheduled working hours. The witnesses to appear for the grievant shall, when called to testify, be excused from duty with no loss of pay.
- (f) The City agrees to make available to the Union all public information concerning the City, together with information which may be necessary to process any grievance or complaint.

1143005-5

ARTICLE XVIII. MANAGEMENT OF CITY AFFAIRS

1. The City hereby retains and reserves unto itself, without limitation, all powers, rights, authority, duties, and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it prior to the signing of this Agreement by the laws and constitution of the State of New Jersey and the United States, including, but not limited to, all rights established under the New Jersey Civil Service Act, N.J.S.A. 11A-1, et seq. and the regulations adopted pursuant to the Act.

ARTICLE XIX. STRIKES AND OTHER JOB ACTIONS

1. The City and MEUSA recognize and acknowledge existing law and court decisions in the State of New Jersey relating to the rights of public employees to strike or to take other concerted action designed to illegally obstruct or disable the proper functions of the City of South Amboy, and employees agree to be bound by all such laws as they now exist or as they may be modified or amended from time to time, It is further stipulated that in the event of a strike or other concerted action directed to obstruct or disable proper functions of the City, that the City shall have the option, at its sole discretion, to seek relief, including, but not limited to, obtaining an injunction against such action under applicable laws, initiating suit to enforce the provision of this Agreement or to recover damages and additional costs incurred from MEUSA or the employees individually.

ARTICLE XX. JOB POSTING

1. When an opening occurs in a job classification or when a new job is created, information regarding the opening will be posted in all departments for one consecutive week, during which an employee shall submit his application, in writing, for such job opening or new employment position. Any opening or new job classification will be filled and/or awarded in accordance with the Civil Service Law of the State of New Jersey.

1143005-5

ARTICLE XXI. MINOR DISCIPLINE

1. The City will wait 24 hours from the time of an alleged infraction prior to deciding whether to institute a minor disciplinary action, as defined by N.J. Department of Personnel Regulations, against bargaining unit members, to provide the City sufficient time to properly evaluate available information pertaining to the alleged infraction.

ARTICLE XXII. NOTICE OF LAYOFF

1. The City agrees to immediately inform the Union, in writing, of layoffs, whether temporary or permanent, or the elimination of any employment positions covered pursuant to this Agreement. All layoffs and elimination of job positions made in accordance with the State Civil Service Laws are to be implemented immediately upon the City's receipt of the written determination of the rights of the affected employees from the New Jersey Department of Personnel. the City agrees to furnish and provide to the Union copies of all correspondence which it directs to the New Jersey Department of Personnel regarding layoff, promotions, and the elimination of job positions. The City further agrees to immediately furnish to the Union copies of all correspondence received from the New Jersey Department of Personnel in response to its communications.

1143005-5

ARTICLE XXIII. REPRESENTATION FEE

- Any employee in the bargaining unit on the effective date of this Agreement who does not join the Union within thirty (30) days thereafter; any new employee who does not join the Union within thirty (30) days of initial employment; and any employee previously employed who does not join the Union within ten (10) days or reentry into employment shall, as, a condition of employment, pay a representation fee to the Union by automatic payroll deduction. The representation fee shall be in an amount equal to eighty-five percent (85%) of the regular Union membership dues, fees and assessments The Union's entitlement to the Representation Fee shall continue beyond the termination date of this Agreement so long as the Union remains the majority representative of the employees and provided that no modification is made in this provision by a successor Agreement between the Union and the City.
- 2. The Union shall indemnify, defend and save the City harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits or other forms of liability that may arise out of or by reason of action taken by the City on reliance-upon the salary deduction authorization cards submitted by the Union to the City and/or that may arise by reason of action taken by the City in the salary deduction of eighty-five percent (85%) of Union dues for employees who are not members of the Union.

ARTICLE XXIV. FUNERAL LEAVE

- 1. In addition to the leave currently established by City ordinances, it is agreed that one (1) day of leave with pay will be provided to attend the funeral of an aunt or uncle.
- 2. Funeral leave (3) three business days is to be taken consecutively.

ARTICLE XXV. GENERAL PROVISIONS

- 1. The provisions of this Agreement shall be subject to and not annul or modify existing applicable provisions of Federal, State and Local Laws and Ordinances, except as limited by the terms of this Agreement, or any properly enacted amendments, additions, or deletions thereto, except as specifically permitted thereby. If any provision of the Agreement shall be judged invalid either by court decree or by decision of an administrative tribunal, such adjudications shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions which shall be deemed severable therefrom.
- 2. This Agreement shall be in full force and effect as of January 1, 2014 and shall remain in effect to and including December 31, 2018, provided, however, that all rights and privileges conferred to the parties herein shall continue until such time as a successor agreement is negotiated or implemented pending impasse. This Agreement shall continue in full force and effect from year to year thereafter, unless one party or the other gives notice, in writing, no later than one hundred fifty (150) days prior to the budget submission date in the year of the expiration of this Agreement, of a desire to change or modify the Agreement.

3. If this Agreement is executed after January 1, 2014, base salary increases due herein shall be paid on a lump sum retroactive basis from the dates specified herein after said Agreement has been ratified, both parties have executed the written Agreement, and the required salary ordinance has been adopted by the City Council. Base salary increases due after the above specified date shall be paid in the normal bi-weekly payroll disbursements. Increase in all other benefits, allowances, leaves, etc., shall be effective on the first day of the month after the above specified date of adoption by the City.

ATTEST:

Laura Kalantsis, City Clerk

CITY OF SOUTH AMBOY

By: Mayor Fred Henry, Mayor

MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES UNION OF SOUTH AMBOY

ATTEST:

By: Mark Ablatells, President

SCHEDULE A

<u>July 1, 2008-December 31, 2013</u> FULL TIME EMPLOYEES ANNUAL SALARY

	MIN	MAX
Administrative Secretary	\$ 18,820	\$ 53,161
Assistant Supervisor of Sr Citi Activities	\$ 19,419	\$ 41,313
Clerk	\$ 12,970	\$ 39,727
Clerk Typist	\$ 12,970	\$ 39,727
Code Enforcement Officer	\$ 21,000	\$ 51,957
Fire Official	\$ 21,215	\$ 64,217
Graduate Public Health Nurse	\$ 15,983	\$ 46,196
Permit Clerk	\$ 17,000	\$ 27,093
Principal Clerk Typist	\$ 16,348	\$ 53,568
Public Safety Telecommunicator	\$ 19,764	\$ 24,573
Supervisor of Roads	\$ 20,015	\$ 65, <u>7</u> 77
Public Health Nurse	\$ 15,983	\$ 46,196
Senior Cashier	\$ 15,484	\$ 49,965
Senior Clerk Typist	\$ 13,875	\$ 37,548
School Nurse	\$ 15,983	\$ 46,196
Supervisor, Sewer/Water	\$ 20,215	\$ 65,064
Code Enforcement Officer	\$ 21,000	\$ 51,958
Code Enforcement Program Monitor	\$ 21,000	\$ 33,262
Court Clerk		
Payroll/Bookkeeper		
Purchasing Assistant		

FULL TIME HOURLY EMPLOYEES

Full Time Hourly Employees	MIN	MAX
Building Maintenance Worker	\$ 7.00	\$ 15.53
Supervising Bldg Maint Worker	\$ 8.59	\$ 25.94
Equipment Operator	\$ 8.44	\$ 25.87
Heavy Equipment Operator	\$ 9.38	\$ 28.74
Heavy Laborer	\$ 7.72	\$ 24.48
Light Laborer	\$ 7.00	\$ 10.26

Maintenance Repairer	\$ 8.09	\$ 24.77
Motor Vehicle Operator	\$ 7.00	\$ 18.85
Sanitation Worker	\$ 8.00	\$ 19.64
Senior Maint Repairer	\$ 8.59	\$ 28.59
Senior Recreation Maint Worker	\$ 8.73	\$ 26.71
Senior Water/Sewer Repairer	\$ 9.38	\$ 28.74
Sewer/Water Repairer	\$ 8.94	\$ 27.42
Supervising Laborer	\$ 8.44	\$ 27.39
Truck Driver	\$ 8.44	\$ 25.87
Code Enforcement		
Officer/ZoningOfficer		\$ 29.25

PART-TIME REGULAR, TEMPORARY AND SEASONAL EMPLOYEES

	MIN	MAX
Animal Control Officer	\$ 7,000.00	\$ 14,337.00
Bldg Maint Worker	\$ 7.00	\$ 14.01
Clerk	\$ 7.00	\$ 13.92
Clerk Typist	\$ 7.00	\$ 13.99
Laborer	\$ 7.00	\$ 14.28
Motor Vehicle Oper p/t	\$ 7.00	\$ 18.85
School Traffic Guard	\$ 7.00	\$ 14.51
School Crossing Guard	\$ 7.00	\$ 14.51

ORDINANCE #2-2010

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF THE CITY OF SOUTH AMBOY CHAPTER 19, PERSONNEL POLICIES

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of South Amboy that the Code of the City of South Amboy is hereby amended and supplemented by the following new section:

Section 19-9

- A. Policy for payment of health benefits to eligible retirees. Employees who retire will be eligible for the benefits hereunder if they satisfy one of the following requirements:
 - (1) Retire on a disability pension after 15 years of continuous service to the City of South Amboy;
 - (2) Retire after 25 years or more of service credit in a state or locally administered retirement system and have been employed by the City of South Amboy for a period of 20 years or longer at the time of retirement;
 - (3) Retire and reach the age of 62 years or older with at least the last 15 years or more of continuous service with the City of South Amboy at the time of retirement.
- B. Type of coverage to be provided.
 - (1) Retirees of the City of South Amboy shall receive health insurance benefits which are equal to those being provided to the current employees in the same job classification and status previously held by the retiree. Modifications to such coverage in accordance with policy changes implemented for existing employees shall be allowed.
 - (2) All coverage granted under this section shall be coverage for the individual employee and family coverage as defined by the health insurance carrier.
 - (3) Upon reaching age 65, any employee who remains a beneficiary of a policy of insurance and who otherwise qualifies for Medicare shall be entitled to receive Medicare as primary coverage and City health insurance as secondary coverage. Employee shall be responsible for the payment of Medicare Part B premiums.

- (4) Upon retirement and each year thereafter, all retirees shall sign a coordination of health benefits agreement. In the event that the retiree becomes reemployed in any capacity where such employer provides health benefits for which the retiree is eligible, and the reemployed retiree is not required to contribute to the cost of those benefits, said reemployed retiree shall be required to obtain such coverage as their primary insurance. The City shall maintain the coverage as outlined herein as a secondary insured.
- (5) In the event that a retiree's spouse is employed, or becomes employed, and where such employer provides health benefits for which the spouse is or becomes eligible, and the spouse is not required to contribute to the cost of those benefits, said spouse shall be required to obtain such coverage as their primary health insurance. Dependents shall be primary on the plan of the employee or spouse whose birth date comes first in the calendar year. The City shall maintain coverage outlined herein as secondary insured.

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this ordinance shall take effect following adoption and approval in a time and manner prescribed by law.

	FRED A. HENRY Council President
ATTEST:	APPROVED:
KATHLEEN VIGILANTE Municipal Clerk	JOHN T. O'LEARY Mayor
APPROVED AS TO FORM:	
JOHN R. LANZA, ESQ. Law Director	
Introduced on First Reading: 1/20/10	

1143005-5 47

Date of Publication: 1/27/10

Adopted on Second Reading: 2/3/10 Date of Final Publication: 2/10/10

3. If this Agreement is executed after January 1, 2014, base salary increases due herein shall be paid on a lump sum retroactive basis from the dates specified herein after said Agreement has been ratified, both parties have executed the written Agreement, and the required salary ordinance has been adopted by the City Council. Base salary increases due after the above specified date shall be paid in the normal bi-weekly in all other benefits, payroll disbursements. Increase allowances, leaves, etc., shall be effective on the first day of the month after the above specified date of adoption by the City.

ATTEST:	
Laura Kalantsis, City Clerk	By: Fred Henry, Mayor
ATTEST:	MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES UNION OF SOUTH AMBOY
5	By: Mark Ablatelly, President

CITY OF SOUTH AMBOY

CITY OF SOUTH AMBOY COUNTY OF MIDDLESEX

ORDINANCE #2-2010

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF THE CITY OF SOUTH AMBOY CHAPTER 19, PERSONNEL POLICIES

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of South Amboy that the Code of the City of South Amboy is hereby amended and supplemented by the following new section:

Section 19-9

- A. Policy for payment of health benefits to eligible retirees. Employees who retire will be eligible for the benefits hereunder if they satisfy one of the following requirements:
 - (1) Retire on a disability pension after 15 years of continuous service to the City of South Amboy;
 - (2) Retire after 25 years or more of service credit in a state or locally administered retirement system and have been employed by the City of South Amboy for a period of 20 years or longer at the time of retirement;
 - (3) Retire and reach the age of 62 years or older with at least the last 15 years or more of continuous service with the City of South Amboy at the time of retirement.
- B. Type of coverage to be provided.
 - (1) Retirees of the City of South Amboy shall receive health insurance benefits which are equal to those being provided to the current employees in the same job classification and status previously held by the retiree. Modifications to such coverage in accordance with policy changes implemented for existing employees shall be allowed.
 - (2) All coverage granted under this section shall be coverage for the individual employee and family coverage as defined by the health insurance carrier.
 - (3) Upon reaching age 65, any employee who remains a beneficiary of a policy of insurance and who otherwise qualifies for Medicare shall be entitled to receive Medicare as primary coverage and City health insurance as secondary coverage. Employee shall be responsible for the payment of Medicare Part B premiums.
 - (4) Upon retirement and each year thereafter, all retirees shall sign a coordination of health benefits agreement. In the event that the retiree becomes reemployed in any capacity where such employer provides health benefits for which the retiree is eligible, and the reemployed retiree is not required to contribute to the cost of those benefits, said reemployed retiree shall be required to obtain such coverage as their primary insurance. The City shall maintain the coverage as outlined herein as a secondary insured.
 - (5) In the event that a retiree's spouse is employed, or becomes employed, and where such employer provides health benefits for which the spouse is or becomes eligible, and the spouse is not required to contribute to the cost of those benefits, said spouse shall be required to obtain such coverage as their primary health insurance. Dependents shall be primary on the plan of the employee or spouse whose birth date comes first in the calendar year. The City shall maintain coverage outlined herein as secondary insured.

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this ordinance shall take effect following adoption and approval in a time and manner prescribed by law.

presented and mariner prescribe	d by law.
	FRED A. HENRY Council President
TTEST:	APPROVED:
ATHLEEN VIGILANTE	JOHN T. O// EARY

Municipal Clerk

Α

Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

JOHN R. LANZA, ESQ. Law Director

Introduced on First Reading: 1/20/10 Date of Publication: 1/27/10 Adopted on Second Reading: 2/3/10 Date of Final Publication: 2/10/10

To Whom It May Concern;

Please he advised Ordinance # 2-2010

loss adopted on Feh. 3rd 2010 by the

loss adopted on Feh. 3rd 2010 by the

Causeil of City of South Ankay and

Causeil of City of South President, Copproved

Signed by, the Council President, Copproved

Chy the Mayor & Law. Director and witnessed

Chy the City Clerk in my presents.

Chy the City Clerk in my presents.

Cancille Gooden

Significant Color of South Compley

Chy and Color of South Compley

Chy and Color of South Compley

LAURA KALANTSIS NOTARY PUBLIC OF NEW JERSEY My Commission Expires 3/23/2016